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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peerless Biotech Private
Limited, Plot #99/100, 2nd Link St, Nehru Nagar Industial , Estate, Kottivakkam,
Chennai - 600041 (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income],
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, and profit, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period,
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone F inancial
Siatements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matter is nut applicable to the company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
‘nconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the prgvisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were aperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue asa going concérn, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of
the Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.




(f} During the year the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration. With respect
to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act. as amended: is not applicable to the
company.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
contrals, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

iit.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or investin
osher persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secu rity
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s] or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of
this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this
regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement,

The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used

software applications “Tally Prime Gold™ for revenue, billing and receivables,
purchases and payables. inventory management and maintaining its books of
accounts during the year-ended March 31, 2025. which has a feature of recording the
audit trail (edit log) facility. The same has been enabled at application as well as
database level. Further, audit trail was cnabled in September 2024 and audit trail
feature has operated throughout the relevant period for all relevant transactions
recorded in the accounting software. Also. during the course of our audit, we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respeet of such
accounting software,
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PEERLESS BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of
internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

o Evalyate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the linancial statements




represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PEERLESS BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
in the Independent Auditors’ Report]

(a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

(b)

(€]

()

(e)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

B. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.

The Property, Plant, and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals. According to the information provided, no material
discrepancies were found.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable
properties. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the
year. Accgrdingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder,
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i] (e) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company. y

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items of

inventory are physically verified over a period of time at regular intervals during the
year. Discrepancies, if any between physical inventory and book records are adjusted
in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations are
carried out. In our opinion, the frequency of verification, coverage and procedure of
such verification is reasonable and appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
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the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification
of inventories.

(b) The company does not have any working capital limits on the basis of security of

it

vi.

vil,

viii.

current assets as on 31 March, 2025.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any Loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph
3(iii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,

investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are applicable and accordingly, the provisions stated
under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. Also, there are no amounts outstanding
2as on March 31, which are in the nature of deposits.

The provisions of sub-Section (1] of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company as the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost
records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us. in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues.
including Provident Fund, Employees™ State Insurance. Income Tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues

Lapplicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

by There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund.
Employees™ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

According to the information and explanations given Lo us, there are no transactions
which are not accounted in the bouoks of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessments of the Company. Also, there are
no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account.
Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




ix.

(a) The Company has taken loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and
government or has not issued any debentures. The company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank, government or dues
to debenture holders.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money
was raised by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence
reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(e] of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence,
reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x}(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi. ;

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the
Company nor on the Company has heen noticed or reported during the year in the
course of our audit.




(b} Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the
Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable
accounting standards. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit
Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

Xiv,
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors, for the period under audit,
issued till the date of our audit report.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with its directors and accordingly, the reporting on compliance
with the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 in clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(¢} The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi}(c] of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

{d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016] does not




uvii.

xviil.

Xix,

KK,

xxi.

have any Core Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are notapplicable to the Company.

Based on the overall review of the financial statements, The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xviii) of the Drder are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios (as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements), ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance thatall liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification,
the provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xxi)
of the Order is not applicable.

UDIN: 25028161BMIGEV3673
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Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0002175

‘I.
—

M PANTHIYIL
LANE

CA Mat )fglécn oci-ie )

Partner ;

Membership No: 028161

Place: Kochi
Date; 24-05-2025



ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PEERLESS BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

|Referred to in paragraph 2(e) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Repart of even date to the Members of
Peerless Biotech Private Limitedon the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Peerless Biotech Private Limited("the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the linancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAl) (the “Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infarmation, as required under
the Act. ;

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to linancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to linancial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness Ouraudit of internal financial controls with reference to financial




statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, A Company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and disposidons of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company’s assets that coulil have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to tinancial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditipns, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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Ber e g s i 5.52 =R s} Eo.an
Lease Uabilinles a7 1401
Trade pavables fia}
i) Total autstanding dues of riore enterprises and small enterprises 13.43 590 15,248
ii} Total outstanding dues of creditoss othar than micro enterprise snd small enterprise 303,55 18748 17748
Cither finaneiad lakisiles 1l 103.88 BB A8.04
Prezvsiang k3 11z . :
Cumant tas liatilisles dret) 2 13 1644 o.18 0.35
Cither current liabilities 13 840 14,80 12,90
Toual eurrent |labifithes W51 I73.14 K
Total Rabifities 493,51 306 0 33180
Total equity and liwbiities 1,430.56 1,111.76 #63.13
564 accompanying nates to the finandal statements 1-49
A

The atcarnpanying rotes ane sn mbegral parn of tha financial stavements.

A par our report of euen date
For Arges & Co.

Chartered Accountanta

Firem Reglstration Mo, Q002175

: 28161

Place: Kochi
Olate; 34 May 2025

Vinsyak Valkunth Bhat
Managing Director

D&M 00BI549]

Place: Channai =
Darte: 24 May 2005

For and on behalf of the Baard of Directasy
Peerleat Biotech Privite Limitad
CIN: LIS 1397 THI001FTC0M o5

.

W

Sasidharan Bichankumar
‘Whole Tima Directar

DAk DES3TAED

Place: Chennai

Data: 24 May 2025

L¢(



Peeriess Bloterh Private Limited )
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year mmnmm
{&mount in millians, excent stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes
Income

Revenue from operations 24
Qrher income ]
Total income

Expanies

Cost of materials consumed 5
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 27
Changes in inventaries of Stock-in-trade 2
Employee benefits expense %
Finance gosts i
Depreciation and amostization expense 3t
{ther expenses 2
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expensg

Current tam i3
Deferred tax credit

Total incame tax expensef{incoma)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive ncome

heras that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Remeasurement gain / [foss) on defined banefit plan

Income tax affect

Other comprehenshve income for the vear, net of tax

Total comprehansive mcome for the year

Eaming per share 3
Basic (Rs.}

Cikuted {Rs.}

$ee accompanmying notes to the financial statermants 149

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our repart of even date
For Argee & Co.

Chartered Accowntants >
Firm Registration No,: 0002175

<A FCA
Partner

Membership No: 028161
Place: Kachl

Date; 24 May 2025

For the year anded For the year anded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,878.48 1,706.33
18.51 19,598
1,896.99 1,729.31
30.54 121.3%
1,233.66 1,130L.Ed
18.96 (B0.90)
20111 1Ay 49
4.79 .45
B2 510
162.37 158,02
1,692.74 149242
.75 236,89
53,44 63.20
11.30) {2.596)
61,14 £9.24
142 61 177.65
491 1.68
[1.24} .

3.77 1.6%
1d44.38 179.34
2.852.10 355293
2,852.10 3552.93

For and on behalf of the Board of Bsrectors of
PFeerleas Blotech Private Limited
CIM: US139TTNAHLPTCO47004

Vinayak Vaiwunth Bhat
Managing Director
D 00895491

Mace: Chennai

Date: 24 May 2025

il

Sasidharan Mohankumar

whale Time Director
CHM: 05931360
PMace: Chennai

Date: 4 May 2025

u



Pagriess Biotech Privata Linvited
Statement of cash flaws for the period ended 31 March 2025
{Amaunt In millions, except stated otherwise)

Particulars

Cash fMow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjusbments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Interest on Bank Loan
Interest an Lease liabtlity
Inlerest income
Loss of stock due ta flood [unclaimable)
Fair walue impact on mutual fund
Prowisacin for expected credit loss

Changes in working capital

Inceease in lrade payables

[Inerease) i inventorles

|Increase) In trade recelvables
[Cecreaselfincrease In other current liabliities
Increase in other financial Habilitles
Decrease/(increase] in other flnancial assets
Increass in provisions and employes benefits
IncreasefiDecrease] I other current asseks
Cash generated in operations

inooene Tax paid (Includes advance tax)

Met cash flows jused)/generated In oparating activities [A] -

Cash flaw from Investing acthities

Pavment for puchase of property, plant and ecuipment and intangible assets
Het fixed deposit having maturity more than three months with bank placed
Purchasa/Sale of investment

Intevest received .

et cash Aows generated f{used) In (mvesting activities {8

Cazh flow from Financing acthvitizs
Repayment af Barrowings

Principal paid on bease liabilitles
Dividend Paid

Finance cost paid 2
Net cagh flows ganacated /{used] in financing m:uuiﬂu 1]

Met Increese/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivelents (A+8+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Lash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with benks
in current atcounts
fixed depasits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Total cath and bank balances st the end of the year

F.rl. ..I'

For the year ended For the year ended
41 March 2025 31 March 2024

204.75 236.89
20.82 2.10
0.76 108
158 053
{514} {5.56]
136
{5.33] (0.02)
7.29 16.50
236.71 6117
12359 053
464 {99.87)
{44.39) E3.40
{6.20] 170
45,02 15.07
756 (1.31
154 30
{6.15) (14,30}
346,38 255,49
{47.20) (63.35)
299,18 192.14
[7.97) (852}
7.69 1105.02)
(240.85) 350
452 6.46
(236.52| (103.58)
[6.10] 162.02)
{14.57) {3.41)
{20.00) {5.00)

(0.78) -
{4142 {70.43)
2124 18.13
1850 041
30.74 18.54
1973 18.48

10.00 :
a0 0.02
39.74 1B.50




Peerlass Baotech Private Limited
Statement of cash Aows for the pertod ended 31 March 2025
{amount in millions, except stated otherwise)

Reconcillation of the movemants of Habilities to cach flews arsing from financing activities

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 11 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance
Cash credit facility 1162 17.18
Loan from Relsted Partles 111.44
interest accrued and due on barrowings . 45.63
Total 11.62 2B4.28
Mowverment
Cash fows-Cash Cradit facility (6.10} [5.57)
Cash Mows-Related Party Loan (221.44)
Interest paid 10.41) 147,74
INtEFEst ERPENsEs 0.41 1,08
Clasing Balance
Cash cradil facility 5.52 11.63
Loan from Related Partles - -
interest accrued and due on borrowings 3 =
Total 552 11621

1. The above Statement of Cash Flaws has been prepared under the ‘indirect Mathad' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash
Flaws as specified In the Companies {indian Accounting Standsrds), Rules, 2015 (a3 amended).

1. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and depasits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances [wikh an origiral maturity of three months

of less from the date of dapasits).
See sccompanying nates ta the financlal statements
The accampanying notes are an intagral part of the financial statements.

As per aur report of even date

For Argee & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration Na.: 0002175

-

CA Mat -4

Partnar

Membership No: 028161
Place: Kochi

Gate: 24 May 2025

1-48

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Peerless Biotech Private Limited
CIN: US1397TH20Q1PTCO 7094

o
Vinayak Valkuhth Bhat

Managing Director
DIN: DOB95491
Place: Chennal
Date: 24 May 2025

K

SasidharanMohankumar
Whole Time Director

DIN: 06931860

Place: Chennai

Date: 24 May 2025



Peeriess Biotech Private Limited

Statemant of changes In aquity for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amaunt In millions, except stated atherwlse)

{A} Equity share capital

|Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 500
Add: Isswed during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5.00
Balance a1 at 1 April 2024 5.00
Add: 1ssued dusing the yvear 5
Balance 33 3t 31 March 2025 5.00
[B} Other equity
fAezerve and surplus
ke Retzined earnings el
As a2t 1 April 2023 &45.51 Bd6.51
Add: Adjustments pursuant to implementathon of tnd AS (20.18) | 218)
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 62633 626.33
Changes during the year
Prafit for the year 177.65 177.65
Other camprehensive incorme 1.649 184
Dividend [5.00) [5.04)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 174.34 174.34
|8alance as at 31 March 2024 BOGLET BDD.67
As at 1 April 2024 BOO.67 BOD.67
Changes during the yaar
Profit for the year 142.61 142,61
Other comprehensive income 7 377
Dhvdend {20.00] (20,00
Total comprehensive income Tor the year 126.37 126.37
Balance as at 31 March 2025 927.05 927.05
S@e accompanying nates to the financial statements 1-43

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financkd statements.

As per our report of even dat'ﬂé
For Argee & C0.

Charterad Accountants

Fisr Registration Mo.: 0002175

CA Mabhew . FCA
Partrer

Membearship Mo: 028161
Place: Kochl

Date: 24 day 2025

K

PANTHIYIL
LAKE

CGCHI-15

Far and on behalf of the Baard of Dirgctors
Peerless Biotech Private Limited
CIM: US1 397 TH001 PTCOAT0 94

W

Vinayak Vaikunth 8hat
Managing Director
[ 00895491

Plage: Chennal

Date: 24 May 2025

Sasidharan Mohankumar
Whole Time Directoe

M ME3318E0

Place: Chenmai

Date: 24 May 2025
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Fewrhiii Biotech Private Limited

Hotas forening part of the Finasclal Statermewts for the yeae anded 35 Sisedh 3035

{Amraum in mllions, excepd skated otherwise]

7 inussinsAnis

11

Particukars

i ECmanT 1 Mutual Furds [Ouated)
Invastmand in Equity sharet of Sutnidiary Companylungaobed)
Todal

Other Fimancisl Asset
Particulirs

{insecered, conudered good)
Seourky Deposits {at smoctbed cask)
I Dhepngil Brcournts with arginal manarity for mone than 17 manths

Oither reoerabie
Intome Ascred
Taital

§ Durbemed tis apsetaf{ilabdties] )

Parbloulars

Daferred tax acsat on accounl of!

Abght of use asse and feaee okl ity scfurtmaent

Praulsan far empkoyes bengf

Expasctad Crackt Loss

Fair Value of depasity

Expenies provided bt slicwabie in Income Ti on peymant basis
Faar vahastion through prefit and s of mutual fund

Dutarred tan Babiiity on poooent of:
Propaty, plant and sguipment

Mt datwrred tax assety

Dreferred tan s/ TRatiitias) cecognized
feata {af Sunsmary of defarred Ui Ssets/atAfies)

Particulars

Property, plant and squipasant

Right of ui ascat ard laasa tishility sdjustment

Expansas provided but sowsbe in income Tex an paymet bish
Prowisiom for smployes benefits

Expaciad Cradit Loas

Eair Yalun of deposis

Fait vmluation throsgh prof s konnof marbual fund

et defened m“ﬂw* i

v

Particulary

Froparty, plany snd quipman

Fight of use sccet and lesse linbility ad)utment
Prowisicn for employes benefits

Fapacted Cradit Losy

Mt deferred tan e [Eakidiity]*

L eremniories

Parthoularn

AL |owedr of cost or nek reaizable value
Rawy e atarials

Tracing goodi

A at As a3l A3 Bt
31 March K15 31 March 2024 1 Aprll 2023
Hon cleraod Curent Non curet Curram Hon Csrent Cumvent
¥y a7 - 051 - 358
- - T1.28 - 7128
317.497 - TLTY - 7528
Ad At Az at Ak M
M March 1075 31 March 2024 1 et 2023
Nisn fuirmer] Current Mo curreril Lurram M Lannan g Carnent
1204 - TS6 LI
=1 u-w . - -
- - T.2% oY 14,53 Q.00
- 2.8 - - - =
11,04 !_ié 15.19 '.I'..T.“_? .85 0.00
At Aot Adat
J1Maerch 2025 30 Macch 203 1 Apeil 2023
rd& 016 i ]
o7 e 81
.38 816 100
r3s .
ooz - -
[1.28) - -
[3.86] [3.72) (2.32)
T3 158 358
112 1.56 .59
M war e
1 Aprit 24 PAL Crsdivad ko 00 11 March 3028
{172} 0 24] - {3.98]
616 30 - a6
% [iXer . [ eE]
196 [ %1 {1.14] o7
g% L2z L3
- r38 - L5+ ]
s {8.23) - 13.23]
758 18 [T 7.72
Ax ak M A
1 Aprill 2023 AL Cradied 0200 31 March 224
13224 {mdap {372
o0 %1 - o6
291 =1- 1] - 1.96
[3] #.15 - B 16
3.9 3.9 - 754
Ay As ot Ax
31 March 3025 30 March 2024 1 Apel 2003
sl I5.8% 1037
8184 312080 239.30
HIE 6,59 75017




Peariai Biobach Private Limbted
Hptas forming part of the Financhal Staternewts for the yebe anded 31 Starch 205
{Amant In mdliors, except 1tabed atherwiin)

i1

11

13

Trade receivable

Azt Ay L]
Farticubas 21March 2028 ¥l March 2024 1 Apel 2023
Unsecured
Conusened good A74.76 38267 487 57
Carrviache re] desubeful 39,66 3241 1581
[T Xt 41508 ]
Lixs:- Expacted ks allowances A% &6} [£FE ] (15.91|
Tea Trade nbtaivabie 414,75 IRTET 48757
Further chissifiad as:
FRastahsakie from related partias [Rafer Nobe 40} 494 5.40
Rescabvainks from athars £59.21 4.2
45418 41508 415.08
Thost mmigrvewieert i alhivemencl Por wnparotad crmiit hors Is e Solimw:-
Cipaidng Balaniy 3241 15,31 -
Change in afowance for expected oredit loax during the year 15 1650 1591
‘w'nikm ol dumrg the year - - o
Cloting REance 39.66 3141 1591
Traetla rpcaivakilas ageing schaduls
As 9t §1 Manch 2008
Liess Thamn & & Montha 1o 1 Wore thas 3
Particulars) Perod e 1-1 Yewrs I-1tein vears Total
{1} Lvsci s prtesd Trade Aecaivabie - Conaldered Good 309.77 56.22 58.21 .60 - 424.76
{ii} Undisputed Tracke Recebnble -Which hine sipnificamt ineraee i cradit nsk = - E v .
{iii} Undlispurted Trade Receivabls - Cradi impained . 3 r
{1V} Linefispuraed Tradke Muceiabie - Considared Doulthal . - " E 1986
{vh Cispuibed Trads Recah:abie - Conldgrad Gand: . - - -
{ui} Dispurbed Trade Recaivabis - Coridarad Deubful - s . - = i
Lwns: Expuctad horas alh - : - = - L¥9.68]
okl Wi S67F 1821 60 3 o0
*Thure aens rey undiiie snd not dus receivables
A ot 31 Mianch 2024
LesaThen 6 & Momths o 1 Mame than 3
Particubecsf Perlod oot Tear 1-7 Viprs 3 Tears Years Temad
nu Trade Recahvahbe - Comuldered Good T 1347 1992 i e 415 o
iy timdlsprted Tradd Recehvalile -Which have significant incraase In it risk - - . - =
|1 Umdisparted Tracs Riceieabie - Cradii impaired - . = 4 =
[1v} Uestl i pestaed] Trauin Amcatvabile - Corsidered Doubtful - - - -
|} Edsgrined Tride Recaivatie - Considensd Good 4 2 <
{wi} CHsgaited Triede Aecehaile - Considered Daubtful e >
Lirks: Eapatectad loas alic - . = - - (5241
Tetal il 1287 1851 - ] YT
"Thare ané 5o undiied and mat dus rlullllllhl
At 3l Spril 2023 = b
18 Thin & Mpths ko 3 M U 3
Particuben Pariod gt 1-7 Tanrg 23 Yaears ons Tersd
{1 Undisputed Trade Recatvabile - Contidend Good ELEE ] 1918 5174 . . 504 48
iih Undisputed Trade Recahplle -Which have gignificsmt ncrsass in cedit risk . - - . - -
[} Limdinputesd Trad Rocahvabie - Cradit impaisd = i : 3 2
{1} e iapetd Trade Recehmable - Considered Doubtful - - . i .
|v) Bisputad Trade Recatvabiie « Considensd Good . . - - £
{u1) Eaprtad Trade Aacehvable - Considersd Oaubtiul - - - - -
Lass: Expacted joxs allcwances - . = - - {1591}
Total 38355 2914 o.M = - ARTS7
*Thars am mo unbliisd and mat due receiuables [
Cosh and il aguivelanty
As As 3 Axat
i 21 March 3004 31 M 2024 1 Aped 2033
Batasces with banks
Frand deposits with matuity of lass than B mcnth 100 - -
Balances with kel .73 1548 par
caish on hand ¥ 004 a4z 004
Total 3874 1850 QA1
Bk Balbrioed otfult 1hgen Coeh and CEsh dgquivslent
in Fixad depodit with matusicy ¥or meane than 3 moshy Bt lass than 12 maonths from balence sheet date 301.52 109,21 k20
Taotsl .52 10811 ‘._IL

PANTHIYIL
LANE

KGQCHI-16




ek Blotach Private Limdted

Mot fooming part of the Fl ik 5k
|Arewind im i TBans, axcapt stiated otherwise]

14 Ohesr curremt assets
Agvenke to yuppliar
Balanoe with Gervememant &uthorny
Incame Arcrusd
Prapaid Expansed
Advance to stalf
Advance for Expenied
Total

017 -

- oas -

- 416 DL
157 118 031
Qs? i a5l

Z BAS 0.27

1331 1616 1713




Preriess Blatech Private Linited
Hotes forming part of the Finandls! Stateyents Tor the yoar ended 31 Munch 3005
{Amourd i imlllians, except stated atherwise)

15 Equity shine caphial

As 8l A1t Az Al
Partieulars 31 March 2036 31Merch 3034 1 Aprll 2022
. Autharised Fhave Capital
50,000 Mumbaer of Equity shares of Rs. 10 asch : 5.0 500 .00
Tais 500 S0 500
b, bdued, Subsorfeed wnd Pald-up:
50,000 Mumbar of Equety shares of Bs. 100 each 5.00 500 5.00
Total 5.0a 500 L]
. Rsgonclliation of equity shares outstanding 8t the beghnsing Asat A Al faal
ard ot e wernd] of the poar 31 Marvch 2025 11 March Ni24 1 Aprll 2023
Particulars Ho of chared Amount No of shares Amournt  Ho of shares Ammount
Cutyiarding at the begmming of the ymar 5, M Loa 4, 0 5.00 50,000 5.00
Add: |sswed during the year = - - . .
Dutskanding ot the and of the vear ﬁe:l.'l E. B Sl 0 5.00 5,000 5,00

. Rights, prafanmoes and resirictions sttached to thinn

The Campany has only one caes af equity thares having par-valus of Re, 100 par share. Easch sharsholder & entithed to one vote per share held. The comparty declaes and pays dividerss in Indian
rupsss. Im the event of liguidation of the company, the holdars of squity sheres will be entited to receive reenainieg afiets of the Coenpary, after distribution of all prefereatial amawnts. The
distributsan will be n prapartion to the rumber of guity sharsd. barid by the dhanshaldar

». Dotalls af shares hald by sharshobders hobdig mons Hhis S5 oF th SEIPepaie shacds in the Company

Asa At AL
Resrme of the sharsholder 31 March 1025 31 March 224 1 April 3021

Mo of shares [ Mo of shares % Moo of shares L]
Virayak Vallurth Bhat 18,700 3T 41,500 3% 41,500 E3%
Ermero Heakhcane Sobuticns Led 30,000 e ] < o - i

A per records of the Compasty, Inchoding e regliter of sharsholders/mamben and other declarations recetwed from sharehaldern ragarding baneicial Interast, the above sharehalding
reprabens both leged and benedicial cwnerships of shares.

1. Sharehaiding of Fromoters st the snd of the year, - -
Al Al Bt A wt
Mama of tha B 25 March 2035 31 March 2034 1 April 2023
%ol K Change % Change
No.oFSkire  Tad N Mh Dot o, of Share “:::" During the M. of Share “;'::"' Dueing the
od! Period Pariod

Vinayak Yalkisrth Bhat g 14,700 Ty - &1, 500 B3 - Al S0 L£L
Saxidharan Mohankumar 1,300 N % 1,500 5 - 2,508 %
Privanks Vinayak Bhat . = -5 2,500 % ] 2,504 L1
Sachin Vinayak Bhat - - 5% 1,500 58 4500 5%
Entare Heslthcars Soluigns Lid 30,000 o] bt = = =
E- Mo clusa of shares have baen (55 55 bonus shanes or for considenstion other than cash by the Cormpany dumng the yaar of fiue yean immeditely preceding the current year end,
h, Mo class of shares have bean bogght back by tha Company during the penod af five years irnmadintely praceding the current year end.

15 CHiver equity =

Ax ok As uk As

Farticulart IIMATChIUZS 31 March2034 1 April 2023
Betaingd Egiming
Balance ak the begineing of the yeer 30067 62633 4651
Agjuctments pursuant to imiplementation of ind AS - 3 | 20. 18
Balance b tha beginning of the year BOOLET K633 62533
Agd: Profit for the yesr . 14261 17765 -
Bkl Au-resenerant gainkass on post amploymant benefit cbligation (net of tax| 377 (8]
Dnidend paid during the pear {20} |5.00} -
Clasing Balancy 1.4 800,57 526.13
Hstyre and purpors of resarve

Retanad aamingi: .
This reserve rapresants undistributed losses of the company ss on the bal sheet dete, Retalned sarnings inchises re-messuramant gainifass] on defined benefit obligatiors, net of 1saes that
will not be reclasiified to Profitand Loss,




Feriexs Blotich Privata Linsiied

Mertas forming part of the Flnstciel Statemenis for the year mded 31 Misrch 2025
|amowrt in rilbons, axcepd stated othe rwisep

17 Leass Liabiting

bt Az ot Asat An-at
31 March 205 F1 Mearch 1024 1 Aprll 2023
Longg berm Short e Lang tarm Shart tarm Long berm Shart term
AL a0 rilead cost
Lmase Liability {reler note 41} 1505 144 1551 0.0 -
Total LT 01 15,57 [ X -
I8 Provisions
Bt At Az al
Particulary 31 March MHITS 31 March X024 1 Aprif 2023
Lng tarm Eheort i Long tenm Shart 1srm Limg erm Shart femm
Pravishan for emgloyes Berefiis (Refer note 33) 5.96 128 1156 1,15
Taral .06 128 11.56 15
19 Borrowings —
As gl B at Ay at
Paarticulars 1 March 1125 31 March 2024 1 Apail 2023
Non Curment Currant MWon Carrent Lurment Mon Curvrant Curment
Sacurad
Term Laan from Banks 5.52 552 6.10 I11.E1 557
Cash Credt from Banks . = A E g 37
5.5 5.57 510 1161 5984
30 Trisde payables
Az ot A3 ak Ag ot
Particubats 11 Morck 2025 31 March 2024 1 Apell 1023
Total eutsranding dues of micro anterprises snd small enistprise 13,43 5.90 15.38
Tatal cutstanding duss af creditor other than micre sntemprises and small entarprises** 03.55 187.49 17748
Toisd ' 31698 193,39 19286
Trade paysbles sgeing sthisduls -
A ax 33 March 215
Cutstanding for ToSiewing periods fram the date of ransection
Particulars Lk than 1 Mora than 1
S 11 Yaurs -3 Yienrs R Total
MSME 13.43 - 1343
Disputed Dues - MEME . - = B
ahar 305.55 .55
Disputed Dues - Othem . s .
Ay 3t 31 March 2004
2 Outstanding for foliowing pectods from the daty of transaction
Prasrticuines Loss than : Mace than 3
Yeur 1-1 Yesna -1 Yaen Vo Yol
A5IEE - 2,80 5.90
Dlsputed Dues - MSME -
Qhar 18743 187.4%
Dispited Cues - Dbty -
Ad at 1 Aprit 2033
Cutstansding for following peniods from tee daete of transaciion
Particulors Less thanm 1 Mopry than 3
Yaar 11 Yaary 23 Yanrs Yenrs Tt
MASIHE 1538 : 1538
Dlsputed Dues - MSME -
Quhar 17748 11748 b
Disputed Dues - Others

PARTHITIL
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Peotes forrming part of the Financial Statemants for th year aded 31 Mardy 2055
(Arsount Im mitions, except stated otherwiss]

Dlschosura rafating to suppliers registersd under MSMED A2t mﬂﬂ- ] ilabie with the Company:
PR Az ai 31 March Az al Al
: .+ 31 March 7024 | 1 Apedl 1023

|a} Amaunt remaining unpald to ary wppter 3t the snd of ssch Scoodng yesr:

Principa! 1343 5.50 15,38§

Tor I : 1143 s5.30] 15.33)

(1] Tha amaunt of inkesest paid by the buyer In barmeof setion 15 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the - - -

paymert made 1 the suppliar byorid the sppainied day diring seeh sccountiig vear.

] Tha amaunt of Interest due and payable for the perkad of ditey n mikieg payment [which have been paid bt

beyond The appainted day during tha year) bul without adeing th ntenen specified under tha MSMED Act,

td] Tha amaurt of interest sccroed sad rermalning ursaid ot the-end of sech accourting yeer.

{a) Tha amount of further nterest remsning due snd pipabbe sven-in the succasding years, untll such date when

tha interest dues sbovs sre sctually paid to the small anterpres; fir-the purposs of dosllowancs of & deductible

expenditure under section 25 of the MSMED Act,

=* Aafar Mote 43 for trade payables 10 related partied
21 Other financial Kabllithes

Ax wt 31 March Ba at A ot
hark w5 JL March 2024 1 Apedl 2003

Orther finmncial Babilithes ot amnontiied cost

#hvance fram Customar . 1.34 a.64

Employee Rahilities 16,73 13186 8323

Secirity Depasits af customer: - 36.85 .18

Crher payables &1.15 751 53

Tetsl LN ] R e
21 Current bt Habiibvy (med]

Aa A at Az al

Farficulary 2% March 2038 31 March 2024 1 Apell 2023

Prenidlen for tas 15,44 0.19 Q.25

Total 16,84 [XT] 035
3 Otfver cusment Raboiites

Statutory duss payabis &0 14,60 9.5

Esnmearked Funds towards TSR Exparndinane 2 x 1.54

Tatal .40 JAE 11.50

-




Peeriess Biotech Private Limited
Meotes forming part of the Finentis! Ststements for the yearendad 33 fsrch 2023
(amount m midlions, except stated otherwise)

24 Reverws from operation

il For the year ended For the year andad
" - 31 March 2025 31 March 2004
Sale of traded goads 1,818.61 §,536.17
Manufaciured goods 57.81 170.62
Sale of Services 1,06 1.40
Ortheer oparating Income s 014
Totl Revenue from operations 1,878.48 1,79.33
Analyss of revermss by segrments:
Manufacturing and Trading of Medical Devices, Lab Equipments Healthcars products and IVD ™ incheding related service 187848 1,709.33
LETEak 1,708.33
Revenue based on Geography
Dhcyrrieatia: LE7TE.A4 1.707 60
Expart - 173
Total 1,878 48 1,700.38
Revenue based on tming of recognition
Fevenue recognition at a paint wn time 1E78.48 1,707.57
Fervenue recognition 3t point ower time - 1.76
Totsl 1.878.48 170933
15 Criheer income
Interest on Fised degosit 452 [ []
Intares Incame
- Interest on unwinding of security deposits .52 0.08
Galn on sale of mutual funds L16 392
Excess provision written back . 1.21
Exahange Meciuation gains L2 827
Fair value impact on mutusl fund 533 0.03
Profit o sale of imestment 1n subsidaries in -
Darnages recovered 113
Miscellanaous income 03z -
Total ik51 1994
26  Cost of materkals congumitd
For the year anded Far the year ondhed
revy 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Raw materials consumed 30.34 121.39
Tertal 30.54 1139
27 Purchase of Stock-m-trade  * '
¢ For the year ended Far the year ended
i 51 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
Purchases of Stock-im-trade 1,233.66 1,130.88
Totsl , 1,233.56 1,130.58
28 Changes i imentories of stock-in-trade
Iwentores st the beginning of the year
Stockin trade opening 0B 13990
Inventaries a3 at the dave of acquisition of subsidisry / business % .
320.80 13990
Leaa: nwerrdodies at the end of the yesr
Stoek in trade x -201.24 32088
-ZNL.B8 -320.80
Met decrense/ (incrense] i 38.96 -20.90

PANTHIYIL
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Peerbess Blotech Private Limited

Motes forming part of the Finencis! Statements for the yeerisded 51 Mirch 1015

(Amount in midllans, exeept stated otherwise]

F1

1

Employes benafits expenie

Salaries, bomes and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI
Gratulty and comp d ak 1 g
Stoff Medicsl Insurance

Key Man insurance

Stalf welfare gupanies (othera}

Total

Finance costs
Interest on Borrowings
On bank kan
Interest o detayved statutory payments
Bank Charges
Processing charges
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilibes
Totsl

Depreciation and amortization expenie

Depreciation an property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5 (A]]
Amariksation on Infangible asssts [Refer note &)

Amaortisation on ROU {Refer note 5§ (BY}

Total

Other expenses
Farticulars

Rental and Hire charges

Rates ard tames

Travelling & Conveyvance

Commission expense

Pewesy awid Tunel

Repairs and maintenance

Distribution sxpenes

Printing and stationery

Communication expendes

Business promothin expenyes

Nt impairenent bosses o trede receivables/Financlal assets
Bad Debts

Aiditor's rerdnerat|on
Advertisement and Exhibiticn
Discourt allowed

Legal and Frofessionad fee

hembershigi and subscoriptions expenie
Dutsourced Services o !
Barsiness Support Chavges

Samples and demokits

‘Warrantbes snd replacements

Postage, and courier

Expiries and Damages

Conations

G50 Evpenses

Brand Building Expenses

Evadution and testing fees

Local conveynce

Insurance charges

Interest on security deposits

G5T and other Indirect Tares

Freight and Forwarding Expenses
Software renswaly and other software expenses
Sales meeting and tralning wopanses
Traning ard Develogment Expernses
Loss of stock due to Aoad {unclaimable)
Recruibment Expenses

Camgerisaory damages

Security Deposits written off

Office &xpenies

Assets written off

Expenses towards C5R commiimeants
Miscellaneaus expenses

Total ¥

189.82 138.11
6.38 5.56
2.18 182
036 092
[1LFF 0.06
135 1.1

20111 149,85
0.76 .08
0.0
0.22 021
003 .13
1.58 0.93
479 345
620 5.44
153 1.44

13.08 .32
0.43 .10
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
371 12.1%
148 0.32
2399 1107
1332 .51
2.94 .m0
164 306
.24 333
083 1.02
128 L3
B.33 013
1.8 16,50
.35 0.16
020 110
0.0z 0.35
il | 1001
a7 .
2.3 0.73
044 -
.15 019
.07 .11
.00 p.o1
077 182

= 0.30
.13 017
160 3.60
057 1.45

11.78 1737
.56 0.x7

- 0.7%

< il 0.30

1315 nn
115 .78
%39 6.15
145 3

£ 338

.06 0.34
052

- 041
.01 -

F 0.10
4.56 0.24
118 R.20

162,37 159.02

PANTHIYIL
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Peerless Blotech Private Limited

Hates forming part of the Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2015

(Arnount in millions, except stated otherwise)

"Hote : The following i the break-up of Auditors remunsmrtion {ssdusive of taoes)

Partaculars
As auditar:

Statutony audit fees
Total

Irutme T
Particulars

Tax expense

Lurrent ke

Deferred tax charge f [income)
Taotal

Reconfiation of effecth tax rate:
Farticulars
ProfitfiLazs) befors smcome tax expense

Enscted income tad rate in ke spplicable to the Companry 26.00%
Tax effect af

Cthars

Total tax expense

Effecthve tax rate

Earnings per share

Particulars

Profit attributable to the equity hotders of the Company (&)
Weighted Average number of shares Bsued for Bagic EPS (8}
Adjustment for ealeulatian of Dlluted EPS {C)

Weighted Average number of shares Bsued for Diluted EPS (D B+C)
Bask EF5 In Ra, "

Ciluted EPS in R,

.14 0.5
0.24 .16
For the year ended For the year ended
11 march 2025 31 March 2024
bi4a 63,20
[1-30] {3.98)
61.14 55.24
For the year ended For the year ended
3 March #1025 31 March 2024
204.75 13689
51.53 54962
10.51 19.38)
&2.14 59.24
30.35% 25.01%
For the year ended For the year endad
51 Mprch 2025 31 March 2024
142.60 17765
0,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
185210 15533
2,852.10 3,552.53

PANTHIYIL
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements far the'year ended 31 March 2025
[Amount in millions, evcept stated atherwize)

15

Employee benefits

. Defined contribution plans

The Company has classified the varlous benefits providéd to employees as under;

. Pravident Fund
. Employee state insurance fund

c. Labour welfare fund

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan -

Particulars

31 March 2025

Forthe year ended  Far the year ended

31 March 2024

Contribution to Provident Fund and ES)

. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity
The Company has an unfunded Gratuity Schemie farits employees and gratuity liability has been provided based on the actuarial valuation done at
the year end. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The actuarial veluation of the deflned benefit obligation was carried out as at the balance sheet date.
Based an the actuarial valustion obtgined in this iﬁplcl. the following tabile sets out the details of the employes benefit chbilgation as at balance

6.38

5.56

sheat date;
For the year ended  For the year ended
Sr Mo Defined benefit plans 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gratulty Gratuity
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)

| Expenses recognised In statement of profit and loss during the year:
Current sendce cost 1.36 2.49
Past service cost 0.00 0.0
Met interest cost f {Income) on the net defined bemefit liability / {asset) 0.83 078
Taral expenses 1.19 3.28

Il Expenses recogrised in other comprehenshve income
Amount recognized In OCH, Beginning of Period {2.18} {0.49)
Actuarial {gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in defined benafit
obligations -
Actuarial {gains) / losses due to financial assumption changes in defined benefit obligations - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to experience an defined benefit abligations [4.91) {1.69)
Return on plan assets excluding Interest income - .
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI (4.91) [1.69}
Amount recognized in OC), end of year : {7.08} {2.18)

I Net zsset /(Tlability} recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benafit obligation TOBM 11.56
Unfunded status {surplus / [defict]] 224 11.56

v Mowvements In present value of defined henefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 11.56 10.18
Current service cost 136 2.49
Interest cost 0.33 0.79
Actuarial {gains) / losses [4.91} {1.69)
Benefits paid {0,603} {0.18)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.24 11.55

PARTHIYIL s |
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes farriiing part of the Financlal Statements for the year sndad 31 March 1025
{&mount in millions, except stated atherwise)

35 Employes benefits (Continued)

v

i

i

Maturity profile of defined benefit obiigation

Expected cash Aows for future years [valued on undiscounted basis):
15t Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Folowing Year

4th Following Year

Sth Folowing Year

Sum of Years 6 To 10

Sum of Years 11 and above

Quantitative sensitivity anatysis for sighificant sssumptions is as below:

Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
(i) +1% increase in discount rate

[il) -1% decrease in discount rate

{iiii} +1% increase in rate of salary increase

{iv} -1% decrease in rate of salary increase

{v} -1% decrease in rate of attiration increase

{vl} -1% decrease in rate of attiration ncreass

Sensitivity analysis method

1.32
1.26
1.18
1.10
1.01
357
226

{0.36)
039
0.41

{2.39)

0.78
0.E1
0.88
0.97
102
5.82
1400

10.63
11.63
12.54
1067
1117
11.00

The sensitivity analysis have been dmmmmad based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting perlod, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Furthermore, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected

benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used In preparing the sengitivity analysis from prier years.

Actuarial assumptions:

1 Discount rate

2 Ewpected rate of salary increase

3 Rate of Employee Furnover .
4 Martality Rate During Employmant
5 Retirement Age

As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 1024
B.66% B6.97%
B.00% 14.00%
20.00% 12.00%
IALM, 2012-14 1ALM, 2012-14
58 years 58 years



Paarless Blotech Private Limited
Nertes Foerning part of the Financlal Statementy bor tha year andad 31 March 20025
| A e eilliong, sicept stated otherwise)

ar

Cantingeet Bablithes

A ak Asat Al Bt
Parosats 31 March 2025 11 March 2014 1 fpril 2003
[i] Cantingart Lisbiltiee provided fer in respact of: Bank Gusmantees 1.50 1 o 1.67

(] Thv Cowripsaery el continue to ssess the impect of furthes devalapmants relating to retraspertive application of Suprame Court Jucgemant dated Februsry 28, 2015
clarifying 1he dafmiticn of ‘basic wages' under Employses’ Provident Fund and Miscellangous Provisicns Act 5952 and dwal with it accorminghy. In the aszessment af the
Fanagemant, the storesad matter is rvat el to have & significant impact and accardingly, no provisikan has been made in these Standalane Firancal Stalements.

Comemitmenta
Thirs ard fo cagiial commitmeents as at 31 March 2005, 31 March 2024 and 01 &preil 2023

Segreend reporting

An pperating segrment i & tomaarent of Campany thal sngages in busness actnities from which it sared revenes and incurs eipensas, incloding revenues and expeases
that relate Yo transsctions with sny of fhe Compemy's othar comporents and for which descrete Fnancis? informatian is avafable

Operatng segments are reportad in & mannay cbmmtitend with the stemal repartng provided 1o the Chief Qpetating Decison Makar ["C0007) af the Comoeny. The Chif
Executive Cfice ard Chinf Ooerating Officer of tha Conspany acts a5 tha {CODM), The Comoany operetes only in ane Business segrwnt Lo, trading of pharmasautcal and

surgice! producis and harce, The Compary il ooy o Sap rapartable sagmania as per ind A% 108 “Cperating Segrenis”

Capital Management

The prirery objecthe of the C v's capial o At s to ansure that [t maintasing sn #Micinnd capial steuciure armd maximizes sharshodder valua. The Company
ranigas iti capial sructure snd makes s In light of ges in econame sonditiom, annual oparating @lans and long term ard other strategk investrent
plans. Ik ardar 1o malnkaln or djust the cepital siracture, the Company may adjust the ameunt of dividends paid 10 shareholders or ssue new thares, The Comparny 1= not
iumject ta any mxtarnally impoged capial megquir Ma changes were mada in the objectivai, polichs or processas far managing caphal during the period ended 51

March 025, 31 March 2074 and 1 April 2023 The Comgany manitors capital using 8 ratic of ‘sdjustad nan debt’ to ‘equity’. Far this purpase, adjusted net debt is defired
a8 latsl llnbillties, cormprising Intarest-baaring loars ard borrowsngs less cash and cash equwalerts. Eauity compriaes 2R companents of equity includirg shere premium
and sl gther squily reissyes atirlbuia e (o the sguiny shans holders.

Thee Comphrms st dub to squity reth is s fallows.

A3 BT Az 3l MAa wt

Partioters F1 March 205 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Borrowings

Long terrn and Shart term bomowings -5:52 .10 53904
Less: cash and cash equivalents: {33 Td) {18.50) {n.a1}
Less: Sank batances other than cish e cathaguivadents faom &2} 1169210 {4.20}
Adjusted nek debt {135.75) 17162 55,34
Tortaf equity 252,04 EQ5.67 B31.33

Al itucl et debt to adjusted equity ratio

Events affkr riporting dele
There have been no svents aMar the reporting dats that raguine disciosure in these finencish vatamants.
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Paerless Biotech Private Limited
Motes faorming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in millions, excapl stated otherwise)

41  Fair value measuraments
A, Accounting classification and falr values

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial llabilities, including their levels in the Fair value hierarchy. it does not
include fair value information for financial assets and Anancial llabilities not measured at fabr value of the carrying amount is 3 reasonable

approvimation of fair valye.

Carrying Amount
Particulars TR FVTOO Amortized Total
Cost
Ireestments {other than subsidaries, joint venture and assoclates) 31797 17497
Orther Financial Assel - 12.04 12.04
Current financial pssety
Trade receivables - - 424.76 424.76
Cash and cash equivalants - - 3874 39,74
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent . - 101.52 101.52
Other current financial assels . . 318 3.18
Tatal - - 603.56 899.21
Non-current financial Habilities
Borrowings = 4 - -
Lease LiabHitles . - 215.05 25.05
Current financial labilities
Borrowings - - 5.52 5.52
Trade payables . - 14.01 14.01
Inventories - - 316,98 316.08
Other financial liabilities . . 103.88 103.88
Total = - 465.44 4565.44
Carrying Amaunt
Forsieuar FTRL Rvrog  Amortized Total
Cost
Financial assets and
Bioa-current financisl assets
investments {other than subsidaries, joint venture and associates) 0.51 . - 0.51
Other Financial Asset i ' - - 15.19 15.19
Current financlal assets
Investmant =
Trade receivables - - 3B2.67 381,67
Cash and cash equivalents - : 18,50 18.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalent . - 109.21 109.21
Other current financial assels - - 7.07 1.407
Total . 0.51 - 532.65 533.15
MNon-current financial Habifities
Borrowings . - . 5.52 5.52
Lease Liabilities - - 15.87 15.87
Currant financial liabilities i
Borrowings ; . . 610 £.10
Trade payables - - 193.39 193.39
Lease Liabilities - . T #
Other financial abilitkes - - 58.36 58.86

Total - - 179.73 ir.74




Peeriess Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Staternants for the yaar endad 31 March 2025
{Ampunt in millions, except stated otherwise)

41 Fair value measurements {Continuwed)

Carrying Amount
Particulars BVTPL  FVTOCH Amortized Total
Cost
] | and lahill 4 L
Non-currant financial
Investments (other than subsidaries, joint venture and associates) 3.98 - 3.98
Other Financial Asset - 2085 10.85
Curvent floanclal assets
Imvestment -
Trade receivables 487 57 487.57
Cash and cash equivalents - 041 0.41
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent . . 4,20 4.20
Other current financial assets - - - .
Tatal 398 & 513.03 517.00
Non-current financial Babifities
Borrawings - - 11.61 11.61
Lease Liabllithes - . 0.20 0.20
Current financial liabilitles -
Borrowings . - 59.94 59.94
Lease Liabilities - - -
Trade payables ) - - 191.86 192.86
Other hnancial fabilities - - 43.79 43.7%
Total - - 308.41 308.41

B. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including other current bank
balances and other Kabilities including deposits, creditors for capital expenditure, etc, are considered to be tha same as thelr fair values, due to current
and short term nature of such balkances.

C. Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to abeve have been classified into three categorles depending on the inputs used in the valvation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabllities {Level 1 measurements] and
lowest priority 1o unnbsewible inputs [Level 3 measuremants).

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This indudes listed equity instruments and mutuzl funds that
have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stack exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting
year.

Leval 2: The fair value of financial Instrumenits that are not traded In an active market Is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as fittle as passible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant Inputs required to fair value an instrument are
abservable, the instrument i included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is ncladed in level 3, This 15 the case for
unfisted equity securities included In level 3,




Peerless Bintech Private Limited
Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
| &mount s millions, eecept stated otherwise)

42 Financial Risk Managemant

The Company has in place comprehensive risk management palicy in order to dentify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks pertaming to its business, Along
with the sisk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is maintained to align with the
philosophy of the Company. Together they heip in dchigving the business goals and objectives consistent with the Compary's stralegees to prevent inconsistencles and
gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Diractort/committtees reviews the adequacy and effectseness of the nsk management policy amd intemal
contrcd system. The Company’s financial risk management ks an integral part of how to plan and evecute (s business strategies,

The Company has exposure ta the following risks arfsing from flnanclal instruments:

= Credit risk

= Liguidity risk and

= harket risk

{B) Credi Risk

Credit visk & the risk of financial loss to the Company if 3 customer of counterparty to & financial Instrument Faifs to meet ils contractual obligations, and aiises
principally from the Company's trade and other recelvables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure,

i} Trade and Other Recelvables

frade receivables are typicalty unsecured and are dértved from revenue earned from custemers kocated in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the
Company through credit approvals, sstablishing credit limits and continuously monttoeing the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit
e i the nodmal course of bushmes.

summary of the compay's exposure to cradit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

As al As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Unseurgd

-Consedered good 42476 39267 48T 5T
Cansidered doubitful ) 39.66 32.41 15,91
Gross Trade Recehvables 464,42 41508 503.48
Less: AHowance far expected loss (349.66) [32.41) (1591}
Het Trade Receheables 42475 IB2.67 487.57

On account of adoption of Ind A% 109, the Company uses expected credit [oss model to assess the impairment: loss, The Company computes the expected credit loss

allowance as per simplified approach for trade recelvebles based on avallable external and internal credit risk factors such-as the ageing of Its dues, market
informatian abeut the customer and the Company's historical experience for customers, The Company has used @ practical expedicnt by computing the expacted
credit Joss allowance for trade recenvables hased on @ provision matriy. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit Ioss experience and i based on the
ageing of the recelvable days and the rates as ghven In the provision matrix.

iii} Loans and financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and advaces given comprises of inter Company loans hence the risk of defautt from these companies are remoteThe Company monitors each koans and
advances given and makes 2 specific provision wherever required,

It} Cash and bank balances

The Company held taih and cash equivalent and other bank balance of Rs. 141,27 Millions at 31 karch 2025 { Az, 127.71 Millians at 31 March 2024, Rs. 4.6 Millions
at 01 April 2023). The same are hedd with bank and financial nstitution counterpartics with good credit rating. Also, Company invests its short term surplus funds in
hank fixed deposit which carry no market risks for shon duration, therefore does not expose the Comnpany 1o credit risk.

iv) Dthers

Apart fram trade receivables, loans and cash and bank balances, the Campany has no other financlal assets which carries amy signilicant credit rigk.

{B) Liquidity risk
Liguidtity rigk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with (ts financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another Bnancial asset. The Company's spproach to managing liquldity is to ensure, a5 far a5 possible, that it will have sufficiant Tiquidity to meet its liabilities when

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Management
ranitors ralling forecasts of the Company's figuidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

{1} Maturities of financial Rabilities
The folkowing are the remalining contractual maturities of financial Giabilivies 8t the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and inchude contractual
interest payments.
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Peerbess Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

|Amount i mallions, edcegpt stated athenwise)

Conkractual maturities of financisi liabilites

A5 at 31 March 2025
Lease Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other financiad liabifities
Total

Contractua maturities of financial lkabilities

As at 31 March 2024
Lease Liabslities
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other financial liabiites
Tatal

Contractual maturithes of financlal lisbilithes

As at 01 April 2013
Lease Liakdlitias

Short term borrowings
Trade Payables

ther financial liabilities
Total

{C] Market Aisk

Maore than
1 year or less 1-5 years % reats Tatal
17.54 2832 A5.B5
5.52 - 5.52
1698 315.58
103,88 - 103.88
443,91 832 .00 472123
More than
1 year or bess 1-5 years % et Total
445 17.41 0.o0 21.85
6.10 L.52 11.62
193.39 - 193,34
58.86 2 . 5884
26280 12493 .00 28572
More than
1 year or kess 1-5 years 5 years Total
112 ooz .0 021
5004 1161 T1.56
159286 = 192.86
4379 . N 43.79
296.72 11.71 000 308.41

Market risk is the risk that changes im market prices — such 2% foreign exchange rates, Interast rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s Income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market sisk managemant is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return The Company's exposure ta, and manegement of, these rlsks is explained beboa.

(i} Forelgn currency risk

Fareign currency risk i the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fuctuate due ro changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company caters mainly to the
Indian Market . Mast of the tranzactions are denominated in the Company's functienal currency ie, Rupess. Hence the Company is not materially exposed to Forsign

Currency Risk

{#] interest rabe rish

Interast rate risk 15 the risk that the Falr value or future cashflows of a financlal Instrument will luctuate because of changes i market interest rates. The interest rate
on barrowings made by the Company is fixed and hence the Company is not expased to interest rate risk,

L




Feerieis Botech Private Limited
Mates Formitg part of the Financial Statements for the year anded 31 Mand 2025
| Bemmaank i millions, except stated otheranse|

431  Aelated Party Déscinsuras {Conthmeed)

B. Detadls of related party transscbong:

For tha Year anded For the Year ended

Hature of Tramaction Mame ol the related party 31 March 2075 31 March 2024
[sarvice incama JAsritha Ceatech India Private Limited J 003 | 053 |
[Cross Charge Experses [Entern Heatthcare Soltions Limsted | 518 | - 1
[Purehase of sock in trace [hsritha Cestech India Privase Limited | 5.32 [ 1230
EP‘urrluu af Asseis |Asritha Desteckh indes Private Lirnited | &7 ]
[rart [Eure Dingrawtic Systerms Private Limited | I T
Vinayak Yaikunth 8hat 4.04 B
Dirgctar remunaration Sasicdharan Mabankomar 1311 B8.50
Sachin Vinayak Bhat .03 19
Reimbursement of expenses Agricha Diatech Endia Private Lmited o.00 <
Gatwell Medicars Salution Private Limited 16 l
Asriths Dintech inclin Frivate Limited 030 9.32
Atraja Healthcare Solutions Pet Lid .08
Bawrras Ertarprased Private Linited 0.0
Caloutta Medisalutians Pt Led a.17
Chethang Haalthcara Soluticns Private Limited 913
(Chethana Pharma Private Limited .31 -
iChbabry Haaltheoare Sclutions Private Limited 035
[Chirag Medicars Salut@ing P Log 495
|y Pharma Distributor Pyt Lid a3
Dewi Pharema Wellmiss Put Lid e -
Dhanvanthar Super Speciality Private Limiced n.o? -
Enterc Healthoane Sobutions Limited D54 -
Ertaro B.5Enterprises Private Lemated 147
G5 Pharmaceutical Distributars Private Limited 024 -
. Galavystar Pharma Distribators Private Limited 1.
Gartweall Medicars Solution Private Limited 174
Sals of stock in trade Gauray hMedical Agencies Privete Limated 015
inggl Eriarprises Private Limited na3
Iilennum hedacluticns #rivate Limitad 1o
Mayackre Haalthcare Soluticns Private Limited 1-14
R % M Pharma Private Limitad Dok ;
Fada Madischutions Put, Ltd. nil .
ar ' 5 & Pharma Traders Private Lemited [eB 1Y
= d Sal phasma distribukers Private Limited 157
|Saurashira Medisalstiars Pt Ltd [+ -
Sesha Balajpes Madiscbations Private Limited [ =
|Jr| Parshwa Pharma Disiibisdars Privace Limiged b.a2 -
SWRED Solutions Private Limited [+ R |
545 Lilescierces Provate Limited na? -
Sywaemi Madisolutions Private Limited B17
WasnA Medicare Solutiens Private Limited bl E
[Wasiern Healthoare Sofutions Pyt Lid =X -
Ligain Maheshwari Pharens Destributons Put Lid D18
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial 5Statements
[Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
Peerless Biotech Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incarporated in India on
May 11, 2001, having its registered office Block-C, 36/37, Millenium -House M.K.Srinivasan Nagar - Main
Road, 144, Old Mahabali-, Puram, Perunga_.ldi, Chennai - 96, Tamil Nadu, India, 600056,

The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company “Entero
Healthcare Limited” is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
Company is in the business of Manufacturing and Trading of Medical Devices, Lab Equipment, Healthcare
products and VD * including related service,

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016. '

These Standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a
going concern basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items which are measured on an alternative basis, reguired by relevant Ind AS, on each
reporting date ;-
# Certain Financial éssets are measured at fair value {refer accounting pelicy on financial
instruments);
» Employee's net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and
# Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements.

These Standalone financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period/ year ended March 31, 2025-and March 31, 2024,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied ta all the yéars presented except where a newly
issued atmuntin'g standard is Initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
achange in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial 5tatements
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

H

The Standalone financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, unless otherwise
indicated.

Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies used in the preparation of the standalone financial statements have
been included in the relevant notes to the standalone financial statements.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* itis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle, which is defined to be of twelve months.
s itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;
» jtis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
# it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current asséts include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current,

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
» it is expected to be Settled inthe Company's’ normal operating cycle which is defined to be 12
months;
» itis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
s the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification,

Current liahilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current. '
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B. Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the year and disclosures of Contingent
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years
affected. Refer Note No 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments,

1. Assumptions and estimates uncertainties: Measurement of Defined benefit Obligations: Actuarial
assumptions

2. Note (10) recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized,

3. Impairment of intangible assets: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts.

4. Note{39) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

5. Note(44(A{i))) measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item, will flow to the Company and the cost item can
be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/
CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property , Plant
and Fquipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized
up to the date such asset is ready for use.




Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial 5tatements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use ar disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items thereof less there

estimated residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is
in line with the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule |l of the Companles Act, 2013.

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed In
Schedule 1l of the Act 2013

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Periad -

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10 -

Office equipment 5

Vehicle

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

Building 46

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever [s lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

3.2 Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use which includes any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and 5G5T)
or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.




Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years)
Computer software

Licenses

3.3 Fair value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a pri.n:ipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company's management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement. .

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the |evel
of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out bhelow.

» Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

» Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is sig_niﬁcant to the fair value measurement is dir
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is based on unobservable market data.

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer, Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable
and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the goods are delivered at the agreed point of delivery.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90
days.

Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount cutstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or
other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer, Revenue is recorded provided
the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

3.5 Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current lIncome Tax:

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable incom
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous ygd
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Peerless Biotech Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
liabiiities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the

entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from Initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when probability of
future taxable profit improve.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.6 Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy, Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.




Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.7 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: {i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
{ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii}) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease component and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is located,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line metheod from the commencement date over
the lease term Br useful life'of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier, The estimated useful lives of right-
of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as
a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exemsmg anoption
to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing HyiRg amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the J ot
and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease mog
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.




Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.8 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises cost
of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.  °

3.9 Impalrment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired, If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable ambunt and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount, Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases 3 ,-'":'_T"'-» Qse can
be related ohbjectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recogniz
recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.




Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit {as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

3.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
chbligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand , cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance

sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.12 Financlal Instruments

liability or equity instrument of another entity,




Peerless Biotech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Financial assets

{i) Recagnition and Initial measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

{ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b} at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
¢} at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets s included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
cantractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movefhents in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income ('OCY),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss and recognized in other gains/ {losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FYOC|
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest and dividend income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income”. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: All eguity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acqguirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FMTPL, For
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI suhs
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OC! to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

{iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FYOCL

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when tha expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In the balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized
cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of tho
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amoun
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{iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation ta pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset Is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

{B) Financial liabilities

{i) Recognition and Initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(i) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are alsa classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
far trading are recognized in the statement of profit and |oss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans nd borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking intoc account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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{iii} Derecognition of Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
finance Costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that alse includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss.

{D) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assetg and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.13 Employee Benefits :

{a) Shart-term ohligations -
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
bengfit obligations in the balance sheet.

{b) Other long-term empln\req benefit obligations

{i) Defined contribution plan
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Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry out any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly
basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry out any further obligations, apart from
the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and |oss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.
(ii} Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides gratuity, a defined benefit plan (covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined {using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in prafit or loss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

¥

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accurnulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under defined benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3.14 Foreign Currency Transactions

fa) Functional and presentation currency

environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial sm"%erngﬂt'&-,a
N
presented in indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currgn;:,r
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{b) Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transactfon. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.15 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equities shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity sharehu!ders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.

3.16 Share based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are pmvtded to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme,

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date whien the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase
in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date represents the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Expense or credit recorded in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of eriod and is
recognized in employee benefits expense.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share,

4. Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, As on reporting date,
MCA has not notifiled any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company.




